
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 16, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 1 of 2 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  
DILLINGHAM 

 
 

HMAM 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 

Council Members  
     Holly Johnson (Seat A)  Chris Maines (Seat B)  Misty Savo (Seat C) 
 Curt Armstrong (Seat D)  Andy Anderson (Seat E)  Paul Liedberg (Seat F) 

 

DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
David B. Carlson Council Chambers 

Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576 (907) 842-5212 
 

WORKSHOP TO REVIEW MARCH 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  6:30 P.M. JUNE 16, 2016 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. JUNE 16, 2016 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Special Council Meeting, May 27, 2016 ........................................................ page 3 
 
 b. Special Council Meeting, May 31, 2016 ........................................................ page 5 

 
 c. Regular Council Meeting, June 2, 2016  ....................................................... page 9 

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
5. STAFF REPORTS    
 

a. City Manager Report  
 

b. Standing Committee Reports ........................................................................ page 15 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-09 (SUB-1), An Ordinance of the Dillingham City 
Council Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Funds for the FY2017 City of 
Dillingham Budget  ........................................................................................ page 17 

 
b. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-10, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Amending Title 4 to Establish Fixed Costs to be Paid by Delinquent Taxpayers in 
Order to Remove a Property from the Annual Real Property Foreclosure List or to 
Redeem Such a Property After Foreclosure ................................................. page 43 
 

7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

 Page 1 of 124



 
 

City of Dillingham  June 16, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 2 of 2 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-09 (SUB-1), An Ordinance of the Dillingham City 
Council Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Funds for the FY2017 City of 
Dillingham Budget  ........................................................................................ page 17 

 
b. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-10, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Amending Title 4 to Establish Fixed Costs to be Paid by Delinquent Taxpayers in 
Order to Remove a Property from the Annual Real Property Foreclosure List or to 
Redeem Such a Property After Foreclosure ................................................. page 43 

 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-37, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the City Manager to Approve a Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Between the City of Dillingham and PSEA (Clerk Note: A completed resolution will 
be a laydown at the meeting.) ....................................................................... page 53 

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-38, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the City Manager to Approve a Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Between the City of Dillingham and Public Employees Local 71 (Clerk Note: A 
completed resolution will be a laydown at the meeting.) ............................... page 55 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 a. Citizen Committee Appointments  
 

1) Planning Commission, 2 Seats Open   
 
2) Senior Advisory Commission, 1 Seat Open 
 
3) Wood-Tikchik State Park Advisory Council 
 

b. Annexation Update  ...................................................................................... page 57 
 

c. Interim Task Force Borough Feasibility Study Update  
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum 2016-13, Authorizing a Contract to ______ to Provide City 
Assessment Services (Clerk Note:  This item will be a laydown at the meeting.)   

 
11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 a. Legal Matter 
 
  1) Dillingham & Manokotak Annexation Petitions 
 
  2) Bingman Foreclosure Sale  

 
15. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 Page 2 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 27, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 27, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 1 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Dillingham City Council scheduled for Friday, May 27, 2016, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska was canceled due to lack of a quorum, a 
quorum being four Council members.    
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
4. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
5.  SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-31, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Repair 
the Manitowoc Crane 

 
6. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
7. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
8. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk   
 
Approval Date:_______________________   

 Page 3 of 124



 

 Page 4 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 31, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 31, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 3 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Tuesday, May 31, 2016, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to 
order at 12:20 p.m.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby - present 
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 

Paul Liedberg   Chris Maines   Andy Anderson  
Curt Armstrong 
           

Council Members absent and excused: 
 Holly Johnson   Misty Savo  
 
Staff in attendance: 
 Rose Loera   Janice Williams  Jean Barrett   

Eric Suttles   Navin Bissram 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda.     
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.  
 
4. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
5.   SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
 a. Committee of the Whole  
 
  1. Discuss Purchase of Crane  
 
MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to enter the 

Committee of the Whole to discuss the purchase of a crane.  
 
VOTE: The motion to enter into the Committee of the Whole passed unanimously by roll 

call vote.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding the pros and cons of buying a newer model for $1.5M, landed in 
Dillingham, over purchasing a newly refurbished 1982 model crane for $520,000, landed in 
Dillingham:   

 1982 model expect 15 year life; will not need to finance;  

 Page 5 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 31, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 31, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 3 

 New model 35-40 life with regular maintenance; will need to finance;  
 Old crane will be put out for bid, but cost to ship it out, about $77K, will be part of the bid, 

if  looking to help pay down the debt of a new purchase;  
 Wells Fargo provided the lowest interest rate for lease financing, but will have more up to 

date information on Thursday for a report to the Council.  
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to come out of the 
Committee of the Whole.  

 
VOTE: The motion to come out of the Committee of the Whole passed unanimously by 

roll call vote.  
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-31 (AM), A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Purchase 
a 175 ton 4000 Manitowac Crane 

 
MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 

No. 2016-31 (AM). 
 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-31 (AM) failed with Paul Liedberg, Chris 

Maines, Curt Armstrong, and Andy Anderson opposed.  
 

c. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-36, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Purchase 
a 200 ton 2016 Linkbelt 248HSL Crane (laydown) 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul LIedberg seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 

No. 2016-36 
 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-36 passed unanimously by roll call vote.  
 
6. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
7. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
There were no council comments.  
 
8. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
There were no mayor’s comments.   
 
9. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 12:47 p.m.  
 
 

 Page 6 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 31, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 31, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 3 of 3 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk   
 
Approval Date:_______________________   

 Page 7 of 124



 

 Page 8 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 2, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 6 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Thursday, June 2, 2016, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m.  The meeting was preceded by a workshop at 6:00 PM to review the City of 
Dillingham’s FY17 proposed budget.   
  
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby was present.  
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 
 Misty Savo  Chris Maines   Curt Armstrong Paul Liedberg  

Andy Anderson 
 

Council members absent and excused: 
 Holly Johnson          

    
Staff in attendance: 
 Rose Loera  Dan Pasquariello  Janice Williams 
 Navin Bissram Ken Morton 
 
Guest: Attorney Brooks Chandler – attended via teleconference 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Council Meeting, May 12, 2016   
 

b. Board of Equalization Regular Meeting, May 18, 2016  
 
 c. Special Council Meeting, May 20, 2016  

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve the 

minutes of May 12, May 18, and May 20, 2016.  
 

VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Resolution No. 2016-32, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Expressing 
Thanks and a Commendation to Maryanne Dickey 

 
b. Resolution No. 2016-33, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Expressing 

Thanks and a Commendation to Jim McMurray 
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to approve the 
consent agenda.  

 

 Page 9 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 2, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 6 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve the agenda 

as amended with the removal of Bingman Foreclosure Sale from the Executive 
Session.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. STAFF REPORTS    
 

a. City Manager and Staff Reports 
 

City Manager reported on the following items not included in her report:  
 

 RFP for Assessment Services: Extended filing date to June 9; 
 BBEDC also provided three youth internships, one for each dept: Senior Center, Library 

and Finance; 
 BBHA will meet with Tribe and City in August to discuss proposed housing developments 

in 2017.  
 

Mayor Ruby recommended prior to any new contracts coming before the Council to meet with 
the MOU Committee and BBHA.  The purpose would be to review the property tax computation, 
a percentage of the total tax that will be assessed on properties for a number of years before 
being turned over to the owner.   

 
b. Standing Committee Reports 

 
Finance and Budget Committee:  Paul Liedberg reported the committee had finalized the 
budget; would be introducing an ordinance on the agenda regarding foreclosure expenses; 
reviewed landfill fees during the budget review of revenues, took no action, but may look at them 
again in the fall.    
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mayor Ruby opened the hearing on Ordinance No. and 2016-08.  There being no comments the 
hearing closed.   
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-08, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30 – Marijuana Regulation by the 
Addition of a Section Limiting Operating Hours for Retail Marijuana 
Establishments 
 

7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 

 Page 10 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 2, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 3 of 6 

8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-08, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30 – Marijuana Regulation by the 
Addition of a Section Limiting Operating Hours for Retail Marijuana 
Establishments 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt Ordinance 

No. 2016-08.  
 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-08 passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
b. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-09, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Funds for the FY2017 City of Dillingham 
Budget  

 
MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to introduce 

Ordinance No. 2016-09 and schedule for a public hearing June 16, 2016. 
 

VOTE: The motion to introduce Ordinance No. 2016-09 and schedule for a public hearing 
June 16, 2016, passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
c. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-10, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Amending Title 4 to Establish Fixed Costs to be Paid by Delinquent Taxpayers in 
Order to Remove a Property from the Annual Real Property Foreclosure List or to 
Redeem Such a Property After Foreclosure 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to introduce 

Ordinance No. 2016-10 and schedule for a public hearing June 16, 2016. 
 

VOTE: The motion to introduce Ordinance No. 2016-10 and schedule for a public hearing 
June 16, 2016, passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-34, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Establishing the Rate of Levy of Tax, the Date Taxes are Due, and the Delinquent 
Date for Calendar Year 2014, and Accepting the Certification of the Tax Roll (Cl
  

MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-34. 

 
The Council adopted the copy that was a laydown.   

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-34 passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-35, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Requesting FY17 Payment in Lieu of Taxes Funding from the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 

 

 Page 11 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 2, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 4 of 6 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-35. 

 
VOTE: The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-35 passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 a. Citizen Committee Appointments  
 

1) Planning Commission, 2 Seats Open  
 

There were no letters of interest on file.  
 
2) Senior Advisory Commission, 1 Seat Open 
 

There were no letters of interest on file.  
 

b. Annexation Update   
 

Mayor Ruby noted this item would be discussed under the Executive Session.  
 

c. Interim Task Force Borough Feasibility Study Update  
 

Mayor Ruby reported the task force met on May 25, and she would circulate the packet at the 
next Council meeting. She noted a survey would be circulated to the communities requesting 
their thoughts on boroughs, and the resulting draft report provided in the fall.  
 
10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum 2016-12, Authorizing Task Order No. 2 to CRW Engineering 
to Provide Construction Support Services for the Dillingham Lift Station 
Improvements Project 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to Adopt Action 

Memorandum No. 2016-12. 
 

VOTE: The motion to adopt Action Memorandum No. 2016-12 passed unanimously by 
voice vote. 

 
11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Chris Maines:  

 Thanked Paul and Finance and Budget committee for all their hard work on the budget.   
 

 Page 12 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 2, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 5 of 6 

Paul Liedberg: 
 Thanked Navin and Rose for all of their work on the budget as well as the members of 

the committee.   
 
Misty Savo: 

 Thanked the Finance and Budget Committee and City staff for their budget work; and 
 Welcomed the new public works director.  
 

Andy Anderson: 
 Welcomed the new public works director.  
 

13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Ruby: 

 Commended Chief Pasquariello for an excellent job addressing the Mental Health Trust 
Board and the State Drug and Alcohol Advisory Board; 

 Appreciated the Boards’ support for addressing the District Attorney’s office; 
 Attended Borough Task Force Meeting; 
 Welcomed the new public works director; and 
 Asked for a moment of silence to recognize those lost since the last meeting.  

 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a. Legal Matter  
 

  1) Bingman Foreclosure Sale  
 
  2) Dillingham & Manokotak Annexation Petitions 
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to enter into 

executive session to discuss Legal Matter, Dillingham & Manokotak Annexation 
Petition.  [7:34 p.m.]  

 
VOTE: The motion to enter into executive session passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
The Council was joined by Manager Loera and Janice Williams.  
 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to come out of 

executive session 8:04 p.m.].   
 
VOTE:  The motion to come out of executive session passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 8:04 p.m.  
 
 

 Page 13 of 124



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      JUNE 2, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 6 of 6 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk    
Approval Date: _______________________   

 Page 14 of 124



  
SCHOOL FACILITY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
   JUNE 9, 2016 

 

School Facility Committee Meeting  June 9, 2016 
  Page 1 of 2 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The School Facility Committee met on June 9, 2016, at the Dillingham Council Chambers, 
Dillingham, AK.  Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to order at 12:27 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Committee Members present: 

Mayor Alice Ruby  Danny Frazier  Rose Loera  
 Chris Napoli   Andy Anderson  Corey Evans 
 Russell Nelson   Ken Morton   
 

Committee Members absent:  Robin Samuelsen 
 
Guests: Vince Luckhurst Jesus “Chuy” Rameriz  
       
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION: Chris Napoli moved and Russell Nelson seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda. 
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. Minutes of January 20, 2016 
 
MOTION: Chris Napoli moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to approve the 

minutes of January 20, 2016.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Teacher Housing  
 

Chris Napoli and Danny Frazier reported the school will be going out to bid to lease 
apartments (possibly up to four for FY17) for teacher housing.  The school will enter into 
a contract and then payroll deduct the units.  They will also be leasing an apartment for 
incoming consultants and guests and hope to save around $15,000 a year.  
 
Discussion ensued including a request to be sure and add the City sales tax to the 
lease agreement when the housing is turned over to an individual.   

 
6.  NEW BUSINESS  

 

 Page 15 of 124



  
SCHOOL FACILITY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
   JUNE 9, 2016 

 

School Facility Committee Meeting  June 9, 2016 
  Page 2 of 2 

 
a. Review School Facility Director’s Report 
 

Russell Nelson reviewed his facilities report in the packet noting the heat exchanger would 
be undergoing some repairs.  He also shared a copy of the 2016 Summer List of things to 
do in both schools.   

 
b. Preventive Maintenance Recertification Site Visit 

 
Russell Nelson reported on the onsite inspection of the school facilities, which is 
conducted by State Dept. of Education every five years. The packet included the 37-
page report, Dillingham City School District Site Visit, dated February 2, 2016.  Staff 
was applauded in the cover letter for a job well done. 
 
The last OSHA inspection was around seven years ago.  Staff noted it may be attributed 
to budget restraints.  

 
Russell Nelson recognized his staff support, Vince and Jesus, noting his appreciation 
for their capability in their jobs.    

 
c. Tour of the Middle/High and Elementary Schools    

 
The committee proceeded to close the meeting to take a tour of the school facilities.  
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

 
The committee welcomed Ken Morton, the City’s new Public Works Director.   
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 1:10 p.m.  
 
             
       Mayor Alice Ruby, Chair 
ATTEST:       
 
      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Approval Date:       

 Page 16 of 124



 Page 17 of 124



 Page 18 of 124



 Page 19 of 124



 Page 20 of 124



 Page 21 of 124



 Page 22 of 124



 Page 23 of 124



 Page 24 of 124



 Page 25 of 124



 Page 26 of 124



 Page 27 of 124



 Page 28 of 124



 Page 29 of 124



 Page 30 of 124



 Page 31 of 124



 Page 32 of 124



 Page 33 of 124



 

 Page 34 of 124



 Page 35 of 124



 Page 36 of 124



 Page 37 of 124



 Page 38 of 124



City of Dillingham  Ordinance No. 2016-09 
Page 1 of 4 
 

NON-CODE ORDINANCE Introduced: June 2, 2016
 Public Hearing Scheduled for: June 16, 2016  
 Enacted: June 16, 2016 
 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING THE BUDGET AND 
APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE FY 2017 CITY OF DILLINGHAM BUDGET 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has approved the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement 
Budget for FY17 to the City Council in accordance with Title 4 of the Dillingham Municipal 
Code pursuant to A.S. 20.20.500(3); and 
 
WHEREAS, duly advertised public workshops were held and the City Council reviewed the 
budget amendment recommendations presented; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has set the rate of  levy of property tax for the City of Dillingham 
for FY 2017 budget at 13 mills; and 
 
WHEREAS, the budget presented, reviewed and changed is in accordance with sound and 
efficient municipal management principles.  The City Council should have the power to 
transfer appropriated monies from one General Government Fund or Special Revenue Fund 
to another and from one Capital Project to another by resolution and the City Manager should 
have the power to transfer funds from one line item object to another object code within a 
fund and within a Capital Improvement Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, additional FY 2017 funds are available for appropriation by ordinance; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Dillingham City Council that: 
 
 1. The FY 2017 Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Budget as recommended 

by the City Manager is hereby adopted for the City of Dillingham. 
 

2. The amounts set forth in the budget by the City Council for the respective 
departments and/or funds shall be, and hereby are, appropriated for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2017. 

 
3. The City Council shall have the power to transfer approved and appropriated 

General Fund or Special Revenue Fund monies from one to another and from one 
Capital Project to another by resolution. 

 
4. The City Manager shall have the power to transfer funds from one line item object 

code to another within a fund and within a Capital Improvement Project. 

 Page 39 of 124



City of Dillingham  Ordinance No. 2016-09 
Page 2 of 4 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DILLINGHAM that:   
 

Section 1. Classification.  This ordinance is a non-code ordinance. 
 

Section 2. Severability.  If any portion of this ordinance or any application thereof 
to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby.  
 
 Section 3. Appropriation summary.  The total appropriation from the Treasury in 
Section 4 was a total of $11,960,882. 
 

Section 4.  Appropriations. 
 
A. General Fund Government Operations 

  
City Council 

  
$  52,750 

City Clerk 
  

130,571 
Administration 

  
312,893 

Finance 
  

604,540 
Legal 

  
62,000 

Insurance 
  

166,000 
Non-Departmental 

  
174,644 

Planning 
  

142,870 
PS Administration 

  
166,237 

PS Dispatch 
  

469,091 
PS Patrol 

  
815,416 

PS Corrections 
  

616,647 
PS DMV 

  
42,525 

PS Animal Control Officer 
  

93,207 
PS Fire Department 

  
232,018 

PS IT Support 
  

-0- 
PW Administration 

  
162,023 

PW Buildings & Grounds 
  

325,450 
PW Shop 

  
383,932 

PW Streets 
  

461,243 
Library 

  
108,194 

Meeting Hall 
  

3,000 
Foreclosures 

  
5,000 

City School District 
  

1,300,000  
Transfer Subsidy for Operations 

  
          1,134,305 

Transfer to Equipment/Capital 
Reserves Fund 

  
                 -0-    

Total General Fund Appropriations: 
  

 $   7,964,556  
 

Special Revenue & Other Funds Appropriations 
Nushagak Fish Tax 

  
$             -0- 

Water 
  

241,991 
Waste Water 

  
266,290 

Landfill 
  

764,029 

 Page 40 of 124



City of Dillingham  Ordinance No. 2016-09 
Page 3 of 4 
 

Port-Dock 
  

551,009 
Port-Harbor 

  
199,317 

E-911 
  

49,026 
Senior Center 

  
289,681 

Debt Service 
  

1,176,340 
Library Grants   102,543 
Equipment Replacement/Reserve   70,100 
Ambulance Replacement Fund 

  
279,000 

 Mary Carlson Estate 7,000 
 Capital Project (Planning) Fund -0- 
       Total Special Revenue & 

Other Funds Appropriations    $ 3,996,326 
  

Total Appropriations $ 11,960,882 
 
Section 5. Revenues  
General Fund 

Taxes 
 Sales Taxes $ 2,700,000 
 Alcohol Sales Taxes  300,000 
 Transient Lodging Sales Taxes  85,000 
 Real Property Taxes  1,600,000 
 Personal Property Taxes  550,000 
 Penalty and Interest on Property Taxes  60,000 
 Penalty and Interest on Sales Taxes  16,000 
 Gaming Sales Tax  70,000 
 Payment in Lieu Taxes (PILT)  430,000 
Other Revenues 

Jail Contract Revenue  527,000 
Revenue Sharing  132,764 
Shared Fisheries  20,000 
Raw Fish Tax 350,000 
Revenues from State of Alaska 269,213 
Administrative Overhead  383,145 
Charges for Current Services  55,000 
Lease and Rental Income  40,000 

    
Investment Income  30,000 
Other Revenues  80,350 
Transfer from E-911  49,026 
Transfer from Nushagak Fish Tax  -0- 

Total General Fund Revenues $ 7,747,498 
 
Special Revenue & Other Funds Revenues 
 Nushagak Fish Tax $ -0- 
   Water 182,951 
 Waste Water 329,146 
   Landfill 148,707 
   Port – Dock 653,900 

 Page 41 of 124



City of Dillingham  Ordinance No. 2016-09 
Page 4 of 4 
 

   Port – Harbor 138,336 
   E-911 86,760 
   Senior Center 184,100 
   Library Grants 102,543 
 Debt Service 823,438 
   Mary Carlson Estate Permanent Fund 3,000 
 Total Special Revenue Funds 
     & Other Funds Revenues $ 2,652,881 
 
TOTAL REVENUES $ 10,400,379 
 
Section 6. Transfers 
Transfers from General Fund to Other Funds  
 Water $ -0- 
 Waste Water -0- 
 Landfill 615,322 
 Senior Center 105,581 
 Ambulance Reserve 60,500 
 Equipment Replacement -0- 
 Capital Project (Planning) -0- 
 Debt Service 352,902 
 Total General Fund Transfers $ 1,134,305 
 
Transfer from Dock Fund to Harbor Fund $         64,981 

 
 Total Revenues and Transfers $ 11,599,665 
 Total Appropriations $ 11,960,882 
 Net Increase (Decrease) to Fund Balances $ (361,217) 

 
Section 7. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon passage. 

 

  
PASSED and ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Dillingham City Council on 
______________________. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Alice Ruby, Mayor 
        
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
 
________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 
 

 Page 42 of 124



 Page 43 of 124



 Page 44 of 124



 Page 45 of 124



 Page 46 of 124



 Page 47 of 124



 Page 48 of 124



 Page 49 of 124



 Page 50 of 124



 Page 51 of 124



 Page 52 of 124



 Meeting Date: June 16, 2016 

                  
City of Dillingham                                                                                                        Resolution No. 2016-37 
Page 1 of 1   

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-37 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO APPROVE A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF DILLINGHAM AND PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 71  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Employees Local 71 (“Local 71”) represents the City of Dillingham’s 
(“City”) Public Works and Port Department employees (“Employees”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has had an agreement with Local 71 from July 1, 2013 – June 30, 
2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and Local 71 have reached a tentative three (3) year collective 
bargaining agreement (“CBA”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the CBA shall take effect July 1, 2016, and will remain in full force and effect 
through June 30, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CBA is subject to ratification by the Employees and approval by the 
Dillingham City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Employees ratified the tentative CBA on _______________; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ratified CBA authorizes a __% wage increase on July 1, 2016; a __% wage 
increase on July 1, 2017; and a __% on July 1, 2018;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council has authorized the 
City Manager to approve the CBA between the City and Local 71 commencing on July 1, 
2016 and ending on June 30, 2019.    
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Dillingham City Council on June 16, 2016. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 

 Page 53 of 124



 

 Page 54 of 124



 Meeting Date: June 16, 2016 
  

                  
City of Dillingham                                                                                                        Resolution No. 2016-38 
Page 1 of 1     

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-38 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO APPROVE A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF DILLINGHAM AND THE PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Employee Association (“PSEA”) represents the City of 
Dillingham’s (“City”) Public Safety Department employees (“Members”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has had an agreement with PSEA from July 1, 2013 and June 30, 
2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and PSEA have reached a tentative three (3) year collective 
bargaining agreement (“CBA”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the CBA shall take effect July 1, 2016, and will remain in full force and effect 
through June 30, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CBA is subject to ratification by the Members and approval by the 
Dillingham City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Members ratified the tentative CBA on _________________; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ratified CBA authorizes a __% wage increase on July 1, 2016 and a ___% 
wage increase on July 1, 2017, and an increase of ___% on July 1, 2018;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council has authorized the 
City Manager to approve the CBA between the City and PSEA commencing on July 1, 2016 
and ending on June 30, 2019.   
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Dillingham City Council on 
June 16, 2016. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk  

 Page 55 of 124



 

 Page 56 of 124



Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

 
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY AND REGIONAL AFFAIRS 

 
550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1640 

Anchorage, Alaska 99501 
Main: 907.269.4501/907.269.4581 

Programs fax: 907.269.4539 
 
 

 
Preliminary Report to the Local Boundary 

Commission 
 

 
Concerning the Legislative Review Petition to Annex 396 Square Miles of Water  

and Three Square Miles of Islands to the City of Dillingham 

& 
Concerning the Legislative Review Petition to Annex 118 Square Miles of Water  

and 37 Square Miles of Land to the City of Manokotak 
 

June 2016 
 
 

 
 

550 W. 7th Avenue, Suite 1640, Anchorage, Alaska 99501 
Telephone: (907) 269-4559    Fax: (907) 269-4563  Email: LBC@alaska.gov 
Website: www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/dcra/LocalBoundaryCommission

 Page 57 of 124

mailto:LBC@alaska.gov


  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This preliminary report was written by staff to the Local Boundary Commission (LBC or commission). The 
staff is part of the Division of Community and Regional Affairs of the Alaska Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development (Commerce). The report can also be found at the following 
address: 
www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/dcra/LocalBoundaryCommission/CurrentPetitions/2015CityofDillinghama
ndCityofManokotakAnnexationPetitions/Reports.  

In accordance with 3 AAC 110.530(c), the public may review and comment on the report. Comments must 
be received by 4:30 p.m. on July 15, 2016. The LBC staff will issue a final report after considering written 
comments on this preliminary report. 

Commerce complies with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Upon request, this report 
will be made available in large print or other accessible formats. Such requests should be directed to the Local 
Boundary Commission staff at 907-269-4559, 907-269-4587, or at LBC@alaska.gov. 

Graphic illustration only: This publication’s maps are intended to be used only as general reference guides. 
Source documents remain the official record.

 Page 58 of 124

http://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/dcra/LocalBoundaryCommission/CurrentPetitions/2015CityofDillinghamandCityofManokotakAnnexationPetitions/Reports
http://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/dcra/LocalBoundaryCommission/CurrentPetitions/2015CityofDillinghamandCityofManokotakAnnexationPetitions/Reports
mailto:LBC@alaska.gov


Table of Contents 
 

Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................................... 1 

Chapter I. Background ...................................................................................................................................... 2 
Local Boundary Commission ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Member Biographies ...................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Local Boundary Commission Staff .............................................................................................................................. 6 

Petition Procedures ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Chapter II. Analysis ........................................................................................................................................... 9 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Petition Proceedings Thus Far ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

Standards for Annexing to Cities ............................................................................................................................... 10 

General Provisions ....................................................................................................................................................... 24 

General Provisions ....................................................................................................................................................... 37 

Borough Incorporation ............................................................................................................................................... 41 

Table of Contents of Appendices.................................................................................................................. 61 

 Page 59 of 124



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Dillingham and the City of Manokotak each submitted a petition to the Local Boundary 
Commission to annex all or part of Nushagak Bay. Both annexation petitions seek to annex waters in order to 
exploit a fish tax in order to provide income for their respective city budgets. The LBC cannot grant both 
petitions because their proposed annexations overlap. The LBC staff finds that neither the Dillingham 
annexation petition nor the Manokotak annexation petition meet all of the annexation standards. For that 
reason, the LBC staff recommends that the commission deny both petitions.  

Several of the public comments received suggested that the LBC consider proposing a borough. The LBC 
staff concurs with those comments, and accordingly, recommends that the commission propose to the 
Legislature the formation of a second class borough whose borders generally follow the concurrent land 
borders of the Dillingham Census Area and the Southwest Region School District. They also include some of 
the waters of Bristol Bay, including Nushagak Bay.  

The recommendation did not originate with the LBC staff. This recommendation is based upon the 
submitted comments, past borough feasibility studies, and past LBC decisions. It is also based on the 
potential for a rational, equitable mechanism to share the common regional resource that is the valuable 
salmon and herring fishery. The recommendation provides a solution to a decades-long inability for these 
communities to share the valuable regional resource. This recommendation only applies to these petitions 
which are located in the Dillingham Census Area, which is an administrative boundary used only for statistical 
purposes as a county-equivalent in Alaska by the U.S. Census Bureau in the absence of a regional 
government. The staff is not suggesting that the LBC propose forming boroughs elsewhere in the state.  

The Local Boundary Commission has the constitutional authority to submit this proposal to the Legislature 
under article 10, section 12 of the Constitution of the State of Alaska. There is also legal precedent for the 
LBC to initiate a proposed change. The Legislature may not legally amend the proposed change when 
submitted, but may disapprove it by a majority of each house within 45 days after presentation. 

Local self-empowerment is in the best interests of the state and of the region. The LBC staff finds that the 
Dillingham Census Area is best empowered through borough formation. Western Bristol Bay and its fish that 
are a regional resource should be used for the common good. The regional resource can be equitably 
distributed most effectively through regional governance rather than through single cities dividing the waters.  

Borough formation is a way to provide services that benefit an entire region. Individual cities and 
communities might not be able to provide these services individually. Neither Dillingham nor Manokotak 
should be the exclusive beneficiary of the fish in these waters.   

Borough formation is in the best interests of the state because it would empower the local residents, give 
them a secure way of financing local services and education, and also save the state money. The proposed 
borough can be financially viable primarily through levying a tax on fish similar to those in Bristol Bay, Lake 
and Peninsula, and Aleutians East Boroughs. The LBC has an opportunity to propose a viable solution for an 
equitable distribution of the many resources found in the region that has eluded this area for many years.  

  

 Page 60 of 124



CHAPTER I. BACKGROUND 

LOCAL BOUNDARY COMMISSION  

Local Boundary Commission’s Constitutional Foundation  
Article X of the Constitution of the State of Alaska created the Local Boundary Commission (also referred to 
as ''LBC'' or "commission"). It states that: 

A local boundary commission or board shall be established by law in the executive branch of the 
state government. The commission or board may consider any proposed local government boundary 
change. It may present proposed changes to the Legislature during the first ten days of any regular 
session. The change shall become effective forty-five days after presentation or at the end of the 
session, whichever is earlier, unless disapproved by a resolution concurred in by a majority of the 
members of each house. The commission or board, subject to law, may establish procedures whereby 
boundaries may be adjusted by local action. 

The commission is responsible for establishing and modifying proposed municipal government boundaries. 
The framers of the state constitution asserted their belief that the state should set municipal boundaries 
because “local political decisions do not usually create proper boundaries."1 Placing decision-making authority 
with a state body allows debate about boundary changes to be analyzed objectively, taking areawide or 
statewide needs into consideration.2  

LBC Duties and Functions  
The LBC acts on proposals for several different municipal (cities and boroughs) boundary changes. These 
are: 

• Incorporation 
• Annexation 
• Detachment 
• Merger 
• Consolidation 
• Reclassification; and 
• Dissolution. 

 
Nature of the Commission 
In 1974, 1976, and again in 1993, the Alaska Supreme Court stated that the Constitution of the State of 
Alaska gives the LBC legislative authority to make fundamental public policy decisions. The court stated that: 

“[T]he Local Boundary Commission has been given a broad power to decide in the unique 
circumstances presented by each petition whether borough government is appropriate. Necessarily, 
this is an exercise of delegated legislative authority to reach basic policy decisions. Accordingly, 

1 Fairview Public Utility District No. 1 v. City of Anchorage, 368 P.2d 540, 543 (Alaska 1962) (citing Alaska Constitutional Convention 
Minutes of Committee on Local Government, November 28 and December 4, 1955). 
2 Id. 

 Page 61 of 124



acceptance of the incorporation petition should be affirmed if we perceive in the record a reasonable 
basis of support for the Commission’s reading of the standards and its evaluation of the evidence.”3 

Limits on Directly Contacting the LBC 
LBC proceedings regarding a municipal boundary change must be conducted in a manner that upholds 
everyone’s right to due process and equal protection. Those rights are preserved by ensuring that 
communications with the commission concerning municipal boundary proposals are conducted openly and 
publicly. 

To regulate communications, the commission adopted 3 AAC 110.500(b) which expressly prohibits private 
(ex parte) contact between the LBC and any individual other than its staff, except during a public meeting 
called to address a municipal boundary proposal. The limitation takes effect upon a petition’s filing and 
remains in place through the last date available for the commission to reconsider a decision. If a LBC decision 
is judicially appealed, the ex parte limitation extends to the last date of court ordered proceedings. All 
communications with the commission must be submitted though its staff.  

LBC Membership 
The LBC is an autonomous commission with five members. The governor appoints LBC members for five-
year overlapping terms (AS 44.33.810). One member is appointed from each of Alaska’s four judicial districts. 
The chair is appointed from the state at large. LBC members receive no pay for their service. 

  

3 Mobil Oil Corp. v. Local Boundary Comm’n, 518 P.2d 92, 98-99 (Alaska 1974). See also Moore v. State, 553 P.2d 8, n. 20 at 36 
(Alaska 1976); and Valleys Borough Support v. Local Boundary Comm’n, 863 P.2d 232, 234 (Alaska 1993). 

 Page 62 of 124



MEMBER BIOGRAPHIES 

 
Lynn Chrystal, Chair, At Large, Wasilla 
Governor Palin appointed Lynn Chrystal as the member from the Third Judicial District 
on March 27, 2007. Governor Parnell appointed him as the Local Boundary Commission's 
chair on September 10, 2009, and reappointed him as chair on April 22, 2013. Although 
recently a Wasilla resident, Mr. Chrystal lived in Valdez for 39 years and served as the 

mayor of Valdez and as a member of the city council. Mr. Chrystal retired in 2002 from the federal 
government after four years in the Air Force and 36 years with the National Weather Service. He has worked 
in Tin City, Barrow, Yakutat, and Valdez. Chair Chrystal has served on the boards of several civic groups and 
other organizations including the Resource Development Council, Pioneers of Alaska, and Copper Valley 
Electric Cooperative. His current term on the LBC ends January 31, 2018. 

John Harrington, First Judicial District, Ketchikan 
Governor Parnell appointed John Harrington of Ketchikan as the member from the First 
Judicial District on the Local Boundary Commission on September 10, 2009. Governor 
Parnell reappointed Commissioner Harrington in April of 2011, and Governor Walker 
reappointed him on March 14, 2015. Mr. Harrington is a real estate manager and previously 

worked as an adult education coordinator in Ketchikan from 1985-97. He was also a special education teacher 
and administrator in Washington state from 1972-84. He served on the Ketchikan Gateway Borough 
Assembly 2005 through 2011, chairing the borough's Planning Liaison and Economic Development Advisory 
Committee, among others. His community service includes chairing the North Tongass Fire and EMS Service 
Area Board from 2002-05, serving on the Ketchikan Charter Commission from 2003-04, and serving as an 
elected member of the Ketchikan Gateway Borough school board from 1988-94. Commissioner Harrington 
earned a bachelor's degree in psychology and history from Western Washington University and a master's 
degree in educational administration from Seattle University. His current term on the LBC ends January 31, 
2021. 

Robert “Bob” Harcharek, Vice Chair, Second Judicial District, Barrow  
Governor Knowles appointed Robert "Bob" Harcharek as the member from the Second 
Judicial District on the Local Boundary Commission on July 18, 2002. Governor 
Murkowski reappointed him to the LBC on March 24, 2004. He serves as the commission’s 
vice chair. On March 9, 2009, Governor Palin reappointed him to the LBC. Commissioner 

Harcharek was again reappointed by Governor Parnell on May 14, 2014. In 1977, he earned a Ph.D. in 
international and development education from the University of Pittsburgh. Commissioner Harcharek served 
for three years in Thailand as a Peace Corps volunteer. Dr. Harcharek has lived and worked on the North 
Slope for more than 30 years. Commissioner Harcharek retired from the North Slope Borough as the 
Community and Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Planner for the Department of Public Works. He 
served as a member of the Barrow City Council for fifteen years, and is currently Mayor and Chief 
Administrative Officer for the City of Barrow. His current LBC term ends January 31, 2019. 

  

 Page 63 of 124



Darroll Hargraves, Third Judicial District, Wasilla 
Governor Parnell appointed Darroll Hargraves of Wasilla to the Local Boundary 
Commission as the member from the Third Judicial District on June 1, 2013. Mr. 
Hargraves is a consultant and owner of School and Community Resources. He is a retired 
school superintendent of the Nome and Ketchikan Gateway Borough school districts, and 

has served as the executive director of the Alaska Council of School Administrators. Commissioner 
Hargraves is a charter member of the Alaska Council of Economic Education, Commonwealth North, and 
the Wasilla Chamber of Commerce. A former member and chair of the LBC, he holds a master’s degree in 
education, an education specialist degree from University of Alaska Fairbanks, and an honorary doctorate of 
letters degree from Oakland City University. His term ends on January 31, 2017. 

Lavell Wilson, Fourth Judicial District, Tok  
Governor Palin appointed Lavell Wilson, a Tok resident, as the member from the Fourth 
Judicial District on the Local Boundary Commission, June 4, 2007. Governor Parnell 
reappointed him on October 6, 2010. Governor Walker reappointed him on September 21, 
2015. Commissioner Wilson is a former member of the Alaska House of Representatives, 

serving the area outside of the Fairbanks North Star Borough in the Eighth State Legislature. He moved to 
Alaska in 1949 and has lived in the Northway/Tok area since. Commissioner Wilson attended the University 
of Alaska Fairbanks and Brigham Young University. Commissioner Wilson worked as a licensed aircraft 
mechanic, commercial pilot, and flight instructor for 40 Mile Air from 1981-1995, retiring as the company's 
chief pilot and office manager. Mr. Wilson became a licensed big game guide in 1963. He has also worked as a 
surveyor, teamster, and construction laborer, retiring from the Operating Engineer's Local 302 in Fairbanks. 
As a member of Local 302, he worked for 12 years on the U.S. Air Force's White Alice system, the ballistic 
missile defense site at Clear, and the radar site at Cape Newenham. His current term on the LBC ends January 
31, 2020.  

 Page 64 of 124



LOCAL BOUNDARY COMMISSION STAFF  

Constitutional Origin  
The Constitution of the State of Alaska called for establishing an executive branch agency to advise and assist 
local governments (article X, section 14). The duty to serve as that local government agency is presently 
delegated to the Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development (Commerce, 
DCCED, or department). Commerce serves as staff to the LBC per AS 44.33.020(a)(4). Within Commerce, 
the Division of Community and Regional Affairs (DCRA) performs the local government agency’s functions. 
This includes providing staff, research, and assistance to the LBC.  

LBC Staff Role 
LBC staff is required by law to investigate and analyze each boundary change proposal and to make 
recommendations regarding the proposal to the LBC. For each petition, staff will write at least one report for 
the commission. The report(s) is made available to the public as well. Staff recommendations to the LBC are 
based on properly interpreting the applicable legal standards, and rationally applying those standards to the 
proceeding’s evidence. Due process is best served by providing the LBC with a thorough, credible, and 
objective analysis of every municipal boundary proposal. 

Besides providing support to the commission, the LBC staff also delivers technical assistance to 
municipalities, to petitioners, to residents of areas impacted by existing or potential petitions, to respondents, 
to agencies, and to the general public. Assistance the LBC staff provides includes: 

∗ Answering citizen, legislative, and other governmental inquiries relating to municipal government 
issues; 

• Writing reports on petitions for the LBC; 
• Drafting LBC decisions; 
• Traveling to communities to hold meetings and to answer questions about proposed local boundary 

changes; 
• Drafting for the LBC an annual report to the legislature; 
• Developing and updating local boundary change petition forms; 
• Sending local boundary change forms and materials to interested persons; 
• Providing a link between the LBC and the public; 
• Maintaining Alaska municipal incorporation and boundary records; 
• Coordinating and scheduling LBC public meetings and hearings; 
• Developing orientation materials and providing training for new LBC members; and 
• Maintaining and preserving LBC records in accordance with Alaska’s public records laws. 

Two staff members serve the Local Boundary Commission and are located in Anchorage.  

Local Boundary Commission staff 
550 W. 7th Avenue, Suite 1640 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
LBC@alaska.gov 

 Page 65 of 124



PETITION PROCEDURES 

Procedures to establish and alter municipal boundaries and to reclassify cities are designed to ensure a 
reasonable and timely determination for each petition. The procedures are also intended to ensure that 
commission decisions are based on applying the standards to the facts.  

Preparing and Filing a Petition 
The LBC staff offers technical assistance, information, and forms to prospective petitioners. When a petition 
is prepared, it is then submitted to staff for filing. The staff will then review the petition to identify any 
deficiencies in form or content. If the staff finds that the petition contains the required information, 
Commerce accepts it for filing.  

Public Notice and Public Review 
Once a petition is accepted for filing, the staff arranges extensive public notice. This provides ample 
opportunity for public comment concerning the petition. Interested parties are given at least seven weeks to 
submit responsive briefs and comments supporting or opposing a petition. The petitioner is provided at least 
two weeks to file one brief replying to public comments and responsive briefs.  

Analysis 
Following the public comment period on the petition, the LBC staff analyzes the petition, written comments, 
briefs, and other materials. Both the petitioner and the staff can conduct public informational meetings. If the 
petition is for incorporation, the staff must hold at least one public meeting within the boundaries proposed 
for incorporation. When the staff finishes its analysis, it issues a preliminary report which includes a 
recommendation to the commission.  

The preliminary report is available for public review and comment for a minimum of four weeks. After 
considering the comments, the LBC staff issues its publically available final report. The final report discusses 
comments received on the preliminary report, and notes any changes to the staff’s recommendation. The final 
report must be issued at least three weeks prior to the LBC’s public hearing.  

Public Hearings and LBC Decisional Meeting 
Before the hearing, commission members will review the petition, written comments, responsive briefs, reply 
briefs, and the staff reports. Following extensive public notice, the LBC conducts at least one public hearing. 
The commission may tour the area before the hearing to understand the area better. Typically, the hearing is 
in or near the boundaries of the proposed change. Parties may present sworn witnesses, and the public will 
have a chance to comment. 

After the hearing, the LBC holds a decisional meeting. At the decisional meeting, the LBC may act by:  
• approving the petition as presented; 
• amending the petition (e.g., expanding or contracting the proposed boundaries); 
• imposing conditions on approving the petition (e.g., requiring voter approval of a proposition 

authorizing levying taxes to ensure financial viability); and 
• denying the petition. 

  

 Page 66 of 124




